
  VB 5.17.2016 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF PEWAUKEE 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

May 17, 2016 
 
1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Moment of Silence and Roll Call 
President Knutson called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited followed by a moment of silence. 
 
The following Village Board members were present on Roll Call: Trustee Paul Evert, Trustee Kevin Yonke, 
Trustee Heather Gergen, Trustee Cathy Baumann, Trustee Joe Zompa, and President Jeff Knutson; 
Trustee Tom Calder was excused. 
 
Also Present: Police Lieutenant, Mark Garry; Village Administrator, Scott Gosse; Village Attorney, Mark 
Blum; Village Clerk, Chaz Schumacher. 
 
2. Presentation – 2015 Audit Presentation by Baker Tilly 
President Knutson stated that due to the amount of information from Baker Tilly he is asking that this 
item be postponed until the 2nd meeting in June and that any questions be directed to Baker Tilly prior 
to then. 
 
3. Approval of Minutes of May 3, 2016 Village Board Meeting 
Trustee Evert moved, seconded by Trustee Gergen to approve the May 3, 2016 Village Board minutes 
as presented.  Motion carried 6-0. 
 
4. Citizen Comments 
Aaron Yuskis – 220 Prospect Avenue – Mr. Yuskis stated his concern that the sidewalk is to be removed; 
he does not feel it is a safe roadway.  Yuskis stated the best interest of the community needs to be 
considered, especially those that are the most vulnerable. 
 
Carole Stamm – 130 West Wisconsin Avenue – Ms. Stamm thanked the Board members who had voted 
in favor of reducing false alarm fees.  She requested that the Board consider the money spent by 
Pewaukee Shores Condominiums to fix their fire alarms and forgive the remaining amount owed. 
 
Dean Clark – N31 W2352 Meadowlark – Mr. Clark stated his father resides in unit 25 of the Pewaukee 
Shores Condominiums.  He thanked the Board for taking their request into consideration again.  Mr. 
Clark stated the building does take fire safety serious and a large assessment was billed to residents to 
pay for improvements.  He stated there are residents burdened by another financial burden related to 
fire safety. 
 



  VB 5.17.2016 

2 
 

Jim Siepmann – 145 West Wisconsin Avenue – Mr. Siepmann stated his support of the foot the bridge.  
He stated the Village has someone donating money and he encouraged the Board to move forward with 
the project. 
 
Charlie Shong – Representing Pewaukee River Partnership – Mr. Shong stated the Pewaukee River 
Partnership would like to see the bridge installed, that it be one that lasts, is unique, that people want to 
use, and that uses the existing abutments.  He stated the existing abutments are remnants of the ice 
industry and was built to last.  Mr. Shong stated they would be costly to remove as required if the new 
ones are installed.  He stated the biggest concern of the engineer is that they don’t know what the 
abutments were built on.  He gave a history of what he was able to find in archives.  He stated he would 
like to donate his time to finding out more to help move the project forward. 
 
Eric Grunewald – 452 Leanore Court – Mr. Grunewald stated he has seen 3 to 4 students walking up 
Tower Court to school and in the winter this is dangerous.  He stated he is afraid someone will not see 
them walking and they’ll get hurt.  He stated there is heavy use by pedestrians and runners and it needs 
a sidewalk. 
 
Laurin Miller – 335 Tower Court – Mr. Miller stated the blind corner on Tower Court is dangerous and 
it’s difficult to see pedestrians.  He stated he is on the Public Works and Safety Committee and they gave 
unanimous approval of the sidewalk, it won’t cost extra and he doesn’t see an issue.  He stated there is a 
safety issue. 
 
Dean Flowers – 459 Leanore Court – Mr. Flowers stated the people who have spoken live in the area of 
the Tower Court project.  He stated he feels that Trustee Baumann should recuse herself from voting on 
the project because she lives on Third Street and stands to have a sidewalk in her front yard.  He stated 
the safety of the children needs to be considered. 
 
John Yuskis – 319 Tower Court – Mr. Yuskis stated he travels the road daily and it is dangerous, 
especially if salt hasn’t been put down yet in the winter, he has slid around the corner before.  He 
questioned why the project is being brought up again if it has already been approved. 
 
Heidi Grunewald – 452 Leanore Court – Ms. Grunewald stated there are more young families moving 
into the area where she lives and that she would like to keep the neighborhood attractive to them.  She 
stated there are going to be more students, not less. 
 
Tom Opie – 237 Lake Street – Mr. Opie stated he has children that walk on the hill to get to Tower Court 
where their grandparents live.  He stated the neighborhood is starting to turn over and get more 
children.  He stated there will be more children walking and he wants sidewalks and safety. 
 
5. Old Business 

a. Update, Discussion and Possible Action Regarding False Fire Alarm Fee Reduction Request for 
130 West Wisconsin Avenue 



  VB 5.17.2016 

3 
 

President Knutson stated the Board had requested Pewaukee Shores write a letter to the City of 
Pewaukee to see if the City would refund the false alarm fees.  Knutson stated he had discussed the 
matter with the Mayor of the City of Pewaukee and the mayor indicated the City would not state if they 
would or would not refund the false alarm fees for Pewaukee Shores.  The Mayor stated the City feels 
they are in a no-win situation due to the current negotiations with the Village and the City would not be 
responding to Pewaukee Shores’ letter because the contract with the Village states fees for false alarms.  
Knutson stated he would like the Board to discuss the remaining balance of $7,618 that Pewaukee 
Shores holds for false alarm fees.  Knutson stated Pewaukee Shores is in the process of re-doing the 
whole fire alarm system with an estimated cost of $80,000-$90,000. 
 
Trustee Evert stated he did not receive anything in the packet saying as much.  He stated Ms. Stamm has 
said other communities’ fire departments don’t think Pewaukee Shores had false alarms but he hasn’t 
seen anything stating that. 
 
Trustee Gergen stated she did not see anything in the packet about Pewaukee Shores replacing their 
system.  She expressed concern about discussing forgiving the balance owed while still negotiating the 
fire contract with the City of Pewaukee.  She stated she would like to discuss it after the fire contract has 
been finalized. 
 
Trustee Zompa stated there a couple of ways of looking at the false alarm fees.  He stated the cost of the 
runs are passed on after the first run, but that cost has gone up over the last ten years.  He stated when 
there are multiple units at one address, they are all considered one address, so the false alarm fees add 
up.  Zompa stated Pewaukee Shores has tens of thousands of charges, not because they weren’t 
diligent.  He stated the false alarm fee is to incent them to fix the problem.  He stated if you look at 
other communities in the State and Country their false alarm fees are significantly less than the Village 
and still work to motivate property owners to update their systems.  He stated he doesn’t know of any 
other community that charges what the Village does for false alarm fees.  Zompa stated false alarm fees 
are part of running the system and the Village has the option to forgive Pewaukee Shores their 
remaining balance. 
 
Trustee Yonke stated his agreement with Trustee Zompa and that the Village has a responsibility to pay 
for the false alarm fees. 
 
Trustee Baumann stated she agreed with Trustee Zompa. 
 
Trustee Zompa moved, seconded by Trustee Baumann to forgive the remaining balance of $7,618 for 
Pewaukee Shores.  Motion carried 5-1, Trustee Evert voting nay. 
 
6. New Business 

e.   Discussion and Possible Action on Pedestrian Bridge Design Selection AND 
f.    Discussion and Possible Action on Authorizing Preliminary Design Phase of R. A. Smith 
National Pewaukee River Pedestrian Bridge Agreement 



  VB 5.17.2016 

4 
 

Administrator Gosse stated the MSOE students gave a presentation last Friday and he attended along 
with DPW Director White and Trustee Zompa.  He stated this was a student project and not to be taken 
directly to bid but given to an engineer to work the plans so they could be put out for bid proposals.  
Gosse stated that if the Board wants to move forward then R. A. Smith would move forward with the 
preliminary design phase and then the bid phase. 
 
Trustee Zompa stated the presentation provided an opportunity for the students and the Village would 
be served any one of the designs and that it’s a matter of aesthetic.  He stated all 3 designs would 
require removing the existing abutments due to the cost to certify them and then build a bridge on top 
of them.  Zompa stated the cost to remove the abutments is in the six figures range.  He suggested the 
Board also consider the life cycle of the bridge and costs for maintenance and upkeep.  Discussion 
followed. 
 
Trustee Gergen stated her support of the boxcar design as she feels it would attract train enthusiasts 
and is also the least expensive.  She stated her concern with all of the designs is if the Village can’t use 
the existing abutments, they aren’t necessary, but that Pewaukee River Partnership wants to the Village 
to keep them. 
 
Administrator Gosse stated the issue with the existing abutments is that they are not certified as 
structurally sound and the fact that they have stood for a hundred plus years won’t satisfy an engineer 
to put a stamp on it.  He stated the hydraulic analysis states the floodplain cannot be affected, if the 
existing abutments are left in and new ones are built, it would increase the elevation of the river.  
Discussion followed. 
 
Trustee Gergen asked for Charlie Shong, representing the Pewaukee River Partnership, to speak on the 
item.  Mr. Shong gave an overview of his research into the existing abutments.  He stated he has not 
found anything specific to what is holding the abutments up but that he would like to do some soil 
bearings to help determine what is.  Discussion followed. 
 
Both items were deferred to the next meeting or the following meeting. 
 

h.   Discussion and Possible Action on Request to Reconsider Award of Contract of Tower     
Court/Third Street Project 

Trustee Zompa stated that at the meeting where the original vote to approve the project was taken, 
there were a lot of people from Third Street that did not want sidewalks and that at subsequent 
meetings safety concerns were brought up.  He stated he would like to find a middle ground and finding 
a middle ground was not part of the original discussion. 
 
Attorney Blum stated his opinion regarding the statement by a resident of concern about Trustee 
Baumann voting on the matter and that she should recuse herself.  He stated that while the Village does 
not currently have an ethics provision, that the State Statutes provides that if any of the Board members 
has an interest in something and if it provides a benefit or detriment.  He stated that he doesn’t see a 



  VB 5.17.2016 

5 
 

conflict of interest but that each Board member has the right to determine if they should recuse 
themselves from an item. 
 
Trustee Zompa moved, seconded by Trustee Yonke to reconsider the original motion approving the 
Tower Court/Third Street project as presented, with sidewalks included.  Motion carried on Roll Call 
Vote, 4-2, Trustee Evert and Trustee Gergen voting nay. 
 
Trustee Gergen expressed her frustration that this item was being brought back, especially given the full 
house at the meeting in support of the sidewalks.  She stated this is in the interest of safety. 
 
President Knutson stated that after the last Board meeting he met with Administrator Gosse, DPW 
Director White, and Tom Opie, on site to discuss the corner.  He stated they were later joined by Trustee 
Baumann and it was further discussed about what could be done to make the corner safe.  He stated the 
inside of the corner has a big drop-off and a sidewalk cannot go there.  He stated they did discuss 
putting a walkway around the corner that is four feet wide and unpaved, in the summer it could be 
mowed and in the winter there could be some plowing of it. 
 
Trustee Baumann stated that Third Street on its own is dangerous and that she did look at it and 
something does need to be done.  She stated when the discussion first came up she noticed only certain 
roads have sidewalks and that another Trustee had stated that those that didn’t want sidewalks didn’t 
have them, such as Tower Street where there are no sidewalks because the property owners didn’t 
want them.  She stated the more she thought about it, any road without sidewalks becomes a safety 
issue.  She stated that if Third Street gets a sidewalk than Richmond Street, Lookout, and West 
Wisconsin get one. 
 
Trustee Evert stated that the City of Pewaukee, City of Brookfield, and the City of New Berlin are all 
putting in sidewalks.  He stated that if you put in a strip of grass on the hill he could see someone 
walking with a child in the mud and snow and the Village should not do it.  Discussion followed. 
 
Trustee Gergen stated that for the greater public good a sidewalk is needed, it’s a blind curve and there 
are children walking. 
 
President Knutson stated he agreement with Trustee Baumann that if sidewalks are required on Third 
Street than the Village should no longer allow decisions by property owners about if a sidewalk will be 
put in.  Discussion followed. 
 
DPW Director White stated the sidewalk would go from the east side of Leanore Court, down Third 
Street to Lookout Drive.  President Knutson asked if Third Street was included in the project.  Trustee 
Baumann stated it is not scheduled until 2018.  White responded that the current project would include 
Third Street from Tower Court to Lookout Drive. Discussion followed.   
 



  VB 5.17.2016 

6 
 

Attorney Blum stated that with no trustee making a motion to amend the original motion, the original 
motion is voted on.  The Vote was taken for the original motion approving the Tower Court/Third 
Street project as presented with sidewalks.  Motion carried 5-1, Trustee Baumann recused herself. 
 

a.    Presentation on Open Meetings and Open Records Law 
Attorney Blum gave a presentation to the Board regarding Open Meetings and Records Law and the 
memo that has been handed out in previous years regarding the process.  Blum stated that open 
government is the policy of the State and open meetings are better than behind closed doors and having 
access to records allows the public to participate in government.  Discussion followed. 

b. Discussion and Possible Action on Village Code of Ethics 
President Knutson stated the Village does not currently have an adopted Code of Ethics but it would be 
important to have one. 
 
Attorney Blum stated the State Statute has a code of ethics policy and its focus is public officials and 
restrictions on their interactions within their respective roles and with the public.  Blum stated if the 
Village adopted a code of ethics policy it would allow structure for individuals to object to someone if 
they feel it’s a conflict of interest and also provide the process for doing so formally.  Discussion 
followed. 
 
Trustee Evert moved, seconded by Trustee Gergen to table item 6.b.  Motion carried 6-0. 
 

c. Monthly Approval of Checks and Invoices for all funds – April 2016 
Trustee Gergen moved, seconded by Trustee Evert to approve the monthly Treasurer’s report as 
presented in the total amount of $939,321.78.  Motion carried 6-0. 
 

d. License Approvals and Vendor Permits 
1. Liquor License – Class “B” Beer 

Administrator Gosse stated the applicant is required to provide a copy of liability insurance and that the 
Board can approve the license contingent on the Village being presented with it. 
 
Trustee Evert moved, seconded by Trustee Yonke to approve the Class “B” Beer Liquor License for a 
term of 6 months to Pewaukee Land O’ Lakes Baseball Team as presented contingent on receipt of 
proof of liability insurance.  Motion carried 6-0. 
 

2. Operator Licenses 
i. New 

Trustee Zompa moved, seconded by Trustee Baumann to approve the new operator permits for 
Jennifer D’Acquisto and Stacy Calkins as presented.  Motion carried 6-0. 
 

ii. Change of Agent – Costco 
Trustee Zompa moved, seconded by Trustee Evert to approve the change of agent as presented for 
Costco to Kim Timpson.  Motion carried 6-0. 



  VB 5.17.2016 

7 
 

 
3. Food Vendor Permits 

Trustee Zompa moved, seconded by Trustee Baumann to approve the Food Vendor Permits as 
presented for Kona Ice Lake Country as follows: 
 Pewaukee Junior Guild Family Day – May 28, 2016 
 Pewaukee Baseball Tournament – June 18 & 19, 2016 
Motion carried 6-0. 
 
 g.     Discussion and Possible Action on Approval of Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Position 
Administrator Gosse stated that at the last Village Board meeting the Board had directed staff to create 
a job description and it is being presented for approval by the Board and approval to move forward.  
Discussion followed. 
 
Trustee Zompa moved, seconded by Trustee Baumann to approve the job description for Deputy 
Clerk-Treasurer as presented with approval to move forward with recruitment.  Motion carried 5-1, 
Trustee Evert voting nay. 
 

i. Discussion and Possible Action on Columbarium Bids 
Administrator Gosse stated the bid was for a 112-niche columbarium in the Forest Hills Cemetery.  He 
stated the fund balance would be used for the initial costs to install the columbarium with lot sales and 
internment fees reimbursing the costs over time.  He stated the City of Pewaukee installed one 2 years 
ago and has sold 3 niches in that period.   
 
Trustee Yonke stated that funeral homes would not be able to sell the columbarium; the Village would 
have to advertise it.  He suggested the Village consider creating 2’ by 2’ spots for cremains in areas of 
the cemetery that are currently unused and not suitable for full body burials.  Discussion followed. 
 
Trustee Baumann moved, seconded by Trustee Zompa to reject all bids for the Columbarium.  Motion 
carried 6-0. 
 
7. Citizen Comments 
None. 
 
8. Closed Session – The Village Board of the Village of Pewaukee will enter into closed session pursuant 

to Wis. Statute Section 19.85(1)(c) to consider employment, promotion, compensation or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has 
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, specifically to consider Director of Public Works/Engineer 
candidates; and pursuant to Wis. Statute Section 19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, 
specifically to discuss a negotiating strategy regarding a fire and EMS agreement with the City of 
Pewaukee. 



  VB 5.17.2016 

8 
 

Trustee Baumann moved, seconded by Trustee Evert to convene into Closed Session at approximately 
9:30 p.m.   
 
President Knutson asked for a five minute break. 
 
Closed Session resumed at approximately 9:35 p.m. 
 
9. Reconvene Into Open Session 
Trustee Evert moved, seconded by Trustee Yonke to reconvene into Open Session at approximately 
10:19 p.m.  Motion carried by Roll Call Vote, 6-0. 
 
10. Adjournment 
Trustee Baumann moved, seconded by Trustee Evert to adjourn the May 17, 2016 Village Board 
Meeting.  Motion carried 6-0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Chaz Schumacher 
Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


